
   

 

FIDDLEHEADS 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 17, 2015 
6:30-8:30 PM 

105 Huntington Street, New London 
Time Topic Resource Board Action/ 

Outcome 
Leader 

6:30 Meeting Preamble  
Each of us is a member of the coop community 
and has been elected to be leaders in serving 
our members. May we conduct this meeting by 
empowering each other, treating each other with 
kindness, and maintaining an atmosphere of 
mutual respect.  

Check-in 

  President 

6:30-
6:35 

Agenda Review  Make any 
needed 
adjustments 

President 

6:35-
6:40 

Member Comments    

6:40-
6:50 

Check in With Staff Observers 
• How did these meetings help you understand the 

role of the Fiddleheads Board? 
• How will your attendance relate to your work as 

a staff member? 

   

6:50-
6:55 

Minutes (Board Packet) 
• February 17, 2015 

Board Packet Approve Minutes  

6:55-
7:00 

Executive Session 
• To approve minutes of the Executive Session of 

February 17, 2015  

Board Packet Approve Minutes  

7:00-
7:20 
 
 

Board Discussion (Topics for only for discussion at this 
meeting; action to be taken at future meeting) 

• Board Retreat 
What should be the focus of our annual retreat 
and when do we want to have our retreat? 
Do we need two retreats? 

 
 
 

 
 
Discussion 
 
 

President 

7:20-
7:25 
 

Committee/Task Force Reports 
Governance 

 
Annual Meeting 

 
Board Packet 

 
Q&A 
 
Q&A 

 
Mona Harmon-
Bowman 
Carolyn Wilson/Lisa 
Cygan 

7:25-
7:30 

Cooperative Café Debrief Board Packet Q&A Mona Harmon-
Bowman 

7:30-
7:35 

Managers Update Report (Board Packet) Board Packet Q&A  

7:35-
7:40 

Monitoring Report  
B7 Communication to the Board (Board 
Packet) 
B8 Board Support 

 
Board Packet 
 
Board Packet 

Accept Report  

7:40-
8:00 

Quarterly Co-manager check in 
Board members should reflect on three 
questions 
1. How does the GM interact with the full board and 

individual directors? 

2. Are the GM’s reports clear and focused? 

3. How well does the GM communicate? Does she 
respond to questions, especially questions she 

Co-manager 
responses in 
board packet 

Discuss Co-
manager 
responses and 
board 
impressions 

 



   

 

can't answer, without defensiveness or anger? 

8:00-
8:10 

Action Items 
• Member Communication Task Force 

Proposal 
• Board Budget Process Proposal 
• Co-manager Consultant Proposal 
• Resolution Authorizing Board President to 

sign D&O Agreement 
Resolved the Board President is authorized to 
sign the Commercial Insurance Premium Finance 
and Security Agreement with Bank Direct Capital  

 
Board Packet 
 
Board Packet 
Board Packet 
Board Packet 

Approval 
 

 
Carolyn Wilson 
 
Mark Roberts 
Mark Roberts 
President 

8:10-
8:15 

Consent Calendar 
GM Monitoring Report B1 Quarterly Financial 
Condition 
Board Monitoring Report C8 Governance 
Investment 
Board Monitoring Report D1 Unity of Control 

 
Board Packet 
 
Board Packet 
 
Board Packet 

Approval  

8:15-
8:20 

Discussion of Items removed from Consent Calendar  Discuss and 
Approve 

 

8:20-
8:30 
 

Closings 
• April 21 draft agenda (Board Packet) 
• Meeting Checklist 

o Everyone was present physically and 
attentively 

o No sidebar conversations 
o Maintain topic focus 
o Everyone had a voice and was heard 
o Be honest but not brutal 
o Don’t monopolize 
o Clarify the purpose of each agenda item 

to begin 
o Signal if you feel personally attacked, 

disrespected, or put down 
• Review Decisions, Tasks, Assignments 
• Adjourn Meeting 

 
Board Packet 

 
Review 
Evaluate 
meeting 
process: what 
worked and 
what needs 
improvement 
 

 
President 
 
President 
 

 
BOARD PACKET:  

1) February 17 Minutes 
2) February 17 Executive Session Minutes 
3) Monthly Workflow  
4) Governance Task Force Report 
5) Cooperative Café Debrief 
6) Managers Update Report 
7) Proposal Summaries for Online Ordering and New Server 



   

 

8) Board Administrator Job Description 
9) Monitoring Report B7 Communication to the Board 
10) Monitoring Report B8 Board Support 
11) Three Questions 
12) Member Communication Task Force Proposal 
13) Board Budget Proposal 
14) Co-manager consultant proposal 
15) Building a Strong Top Leadership Team 
16) D&O Insurance Information 
17) Monitoring Report B1 Fourth quarter 
18) Board Monitoring Report C8 Governance Investment 
19) Board Monitoring Report D1 Unity of Control 
20) April 21 Draft Agenda 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 1 of 9 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
Susan Zimmerman called to order a regular meeting of the Fiddleheads Board of 
Directors at 6:35 p.m. on Tuesday February 17th, 2015 at 105 Huntington Street, New 
London, CT. 
 

II. ATTENDANCE 

 The following Board members were present:  
 Susan Zimmerman, President 

Mark Roberts, Vice President and Treasurer  
Sue Phillips, Secretary  
Carolyn Wilson  
Mona Harmon-Bowman 

 Lisa Cygan 
 Suzanne Cattanach 
 
 The following Board Members were absent: 
 Ellen Clinesmith  
  
 The following additional persons were present: 
 Staff: 
  Collen O’Reilly 
  Alison Wydler  
  Paul Petranek 

Member:  Joanna Herrick 
Sheila Herbert, Acting Co-Manager 

 Kristin DeMuzzio, Acting Co-Manager 
 Ed Demuzzio, co-op member assisting GMs with financial monitoring 
  

The Board welcomed new member, Lisa Cygan, who will fill a vacancy until annual 
meeting in May 2015. 

 
Mark Roberts distributed a handout on what GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accounting Practices) is all about. 
 

III. AGENDA REVIEW 
  
Summary:  Mark Roberts asks for an executive session at end of meeting for 5 minutes 
for a personnel issue.  Board agrees. 
 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 2 of 9 

 
 
IV. MINUTES OF PRIOR MEETINGS 
 

A. Minutes of January 20, 2015 
 

See edits in packet. 
 
Motion to approve: Mark Roberts  
Second:  Carolyn Wilson 
6 in favor with Suzanne Cattanach abstaining.  
 
 

V. BOARD DISCUSSION 
 
 A. Review of 2014 
 

Board members shared responses to question of what were Board’s greatest 
accomplishments in 2014.  Items noted were: 

 
o Development of being a policy governance board 
o Reviewing and making decision not to pursue Parcel J 
o Adopting an amended Board Calendar 
o Great retreats 
o Developing Ends Policy 
o Improving ability to work together as a team/Board mechanics 
o Networking regionally and internationally 

 
Also discussed Goals for 2015: 
 

o Continue building capacity and developing Board and GM relationship 
o Continue finding ways to creatively make community richer 
o Communicate ends and have short and long term goals – strategic planning 
o Address both Board and GM succession (Board through larger recruitment efforts 

– including succession for Presidency and other officer) 
o Use physical space most effectively 
o Broadening use of co-op model throughout community – educate public and non-

profit entities 
o More Board-Membership involvement/engagement 
o Collaboration with Willimantic Food Co-op 

 
President will compile information in order to be able to refer back/utilize in agenda and 
retreat planning.  Discussed briefly the possibility of a joint Board Retreat with Board of 
Willimantic Food Co-op that would be in August (when Willimantic Food Co-op 
normally has theirs). 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 3 of 9 

 
B. Discussion of Videos 

 
The goal is for Board members who watched some CDS videos to report back on what 
they learned and also to review call summary from CDS consultant. 

 
 Important items noted were: 

o Roles and responsibility being clearly delineated and understood: board, GM, 
staff, membership 

 Board looking forward: directional 
 Staff operational – but what does “operational” mean? 

o No surprises – communication before Board meetings with President and GM and 
at times between management/staff and full Board 

o Board members working with staff on special projects to build 
capacity/relationships 

o Making sure GM has support – can happen by staying focused not just on 
common goals but common humanity 

o That CDS has a lot of tools so that co-op’s do not need to figure everything out on 
their own 

o Simply having a reference point – the experience of other co-op’s which is the 
same/different as Fiddleheads’ experience 

o Ripple effect:  tone, workers and community 
o Chain: board support GM, GM feel good and support staff, staff morale supports 

positive community experience with co-op 
o Four major recommendations from video: 

 Informal support meetings 
 Quarterly check-in meetings 
 Board communication monitoring reports twice a year 
 Monitoring report process that can reflect style/focus of different GMs 

• Using process to learn how board and GM can work together – not 
simply as mechanistic process 

 
There was some discussion around staff/GM meeting informally with individual Board 
members in order to get to know them and perspective and vision for co-op more 
personally.  There is a challenge to not discussion strategic or operational issues.  This 
would not replace monthly meeting with Board President and Co-Managers, it would be 
more social and not related to housekeeping and organization.  Probably will not be on-
going but more related to having new GM(s)/Board members.  No specific decision 
made. 
 
There was also discussion around clarifying what constitutes an “operational” issue that 
Board should be hands off and defer to management staff and making sure Board is 
aware of operational issues that might dominating discourse among staff/membership.   
 
 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 4 of 9 

There was a lot of conversation about this between Board President, Acting GMs and 
Board Consultant earlier this month.  Acting GMs are willing to be mindful of 
anticipating when Board members may hear about issues from members or staff between 
Board meetings to ensure there are efforts to community either with President for 
dissemination or with full Board. This is most likely to arise in relation to financial 
issues.  Acting GMs will bring such issues to Board President for decision on whether 
and how to share with full board. 
 
Request was made for future discussion of roles and responsibilities and both defining 
operational issues and how to handle process of keeping Board informed.  This may 
include doing two half-day retreats vs. one full-day retreat.  President will broach issue of 
a half-day retreat in the next few months with CDS consultant in next Board support call 
(which is February 25th at 4:00 p.m.). 
 
Quarterly check in and board support will both be on agenda for March regular meeting.  
Acting co-managers will be circulating questions for quarterly check-in, either using the 
ones suggested by video or developing some specific to Fiddleheads’ current situation. 
 
Board thanks Acting Co-Managers for suggesting review of videos and encouraging 
Board members to access additional videos. 
 
B. Update on Board Support 
 
Helene Bardinet will be helping circulate and compile Board monitoring reports until a 
Board Administrator has been secured.   
 
Per Acting Co-Managers there should be a job description by end of next week and 
should be able to start search process by March.  Could potentially have someone on 
Board by the end of March.  Board budget includes $300 per month for Board 
Administrator and $100 per month for recording secretary.  Hopefully the Board 
Administrator could act as recording secretary and we will have over-budgeted.   
 
Given how time-consuming it is to generate Board Packet, President requests interim 
support.  Acting Co-Managers will approach current staff and offer to increase hours to 
allow this person to add assembly of Board Packet to existing job duties. 
 
There is now a locked file cabinet at Fiddleheads for personnel files and other 
confidential files.   
 

 
VI. MANAGERS’ UPDATE REPORT 

 
Document is in Board Packet.   
 
 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 5 of 9 

 
Acting Co-Managers clarified that the storewide strategic plan has been compiled 
incorporating the strategic plans for each division within the co-op.  That document is 
available for inspection at the store.  Sheila Herbert indicated that the final strategic plan 
is pending her global review and ensuring that all the parts coalesce into a meaningful 
whole.  Thus, she will do some immediate polishing/organization and that although it is a 
“work in progress” the general contours have not and will not change significantly.  
Board is reminded that strategic plan is a road map for how to collect and report data on 
operations back to Board, and that Board does not need to review an updated document 
(draft strategic plan was part of the B2 Planning and Budgeting Monitoring Report 
presented at the December meeting). 

 
 
VII. GM MONITORING REPORT B1:  FINANCIAL CONDITION and ACTIVITES 

(4th Quarter) 
 

B.1.2: 
 

Insufficient margin percent reported for Merchandise (non-food) because there was too 
much inventory in December.  This was addressed operationally by not acquiring 
additional inventory and selling inventory off during December.  This resulted in no costs 
but high income for one month and the Merchandise department has a plan to prevent this 
situation from developing again in the future by monitoring what sells and what does not 
and only purchasing items that move within a couple of months.   
 
B.1.4: 
 
Clarification was sought and offered on the use of the “Quick Ratio” as a measure of 
solvency.  Graph under B.1.4 at top of page 5 shows CoCoFist mean of 1.25:1 and that 
recommendation is no more that 1.1:1.  The Acting Co-Managers indicate that goal 
should in fact be 1.25 for a retail food co-op, which is the actual recommendation of 
CoCoFist. 
 
Board observes that co-op is not in compliance with means B.1.4, although it is 
promising that our ratio is now .95:1 which is higher than in the past.  This section will be 
clarified for next month. 
 
B.1.7: 
 
Board sought additional clarity around whether tax payments are current and whether 
Acting Co-Managers are reporting compliance.  This section will be clarifies for next 
month. 
 
B.1.8: 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 6 of 9 

Board notes that there is no data to support compliance with this item.  This item will be 
updated for next month. 
 
 
B.1.10: 
 
Although compliance with using GAAP is reported, this has not been an item of 
compliance in the past, Board would like data to document compliance or lack thereof.  
Acting Co-Managers clarify that processes are compliant although Annual Report was 
not.  Plan is that Annual Report will be issues in two versions, income tax basis and 
GAAP compliant basis. 
 
This item will be updated to reflect discussion as well. 
 
Attachments were experienced by Board members as too exhaustive.  Acting Co-
Managers will seek to streamline what is pres 
 
Motion to accept Monitoring Report B.1 with the changes indicated to be presented 
in March. 
Motion:  Mark Roberts 
Seoncd:  Mona Harmon-Bowman 
All in favor. 
 
All non-board member attendees have now left the meeting with exception of Ed 
DeMuzzio and Paul Petranek. 
 
 

VIII. ACTION ITEMS 
 
A. Governance Committee 
 
Report is in Board Packet.  Additionally, the Committee reported orally that there was 
significant interest, with 15 people attending a meet and greet and expressing interest in 
exploring Board service and/or other service opportunities (committees, task forces, etc.).  
Five individuals were specifically interested in running for positions on the Board.  
Interest believed to have been generated by sending individually addressed 
correspondence rather than impersonal  
 
Request is made to change chair of Governance Committee to Mona Harmon-Bowman 
and Helene Bardinet (member-owner) as Mark Roberts having positions of both Board 
Vice President and Treasurer is already absorbing a lot of his time and energy. 
 
Motion to appoint Mona Harmon-Bowman and Helene Bardinet as co-chairs of 
governance committee. 
Motion:  Mark Roberts 

 Second:  Suzanne Cattanach 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 7 of 9 

 All in favor. 
 

 
 
B. Revision of Policy C8 

 
Request is to make policy on Board Budget consistent with decision made at last meeting 
with completion of budget planning in September rather than October. 

 
Motion to revise policy C.8 to reflect budget development to be completed in 
September each year, rather than October. 

 Motion:  Mark Roberts 
Second:  Suzanne Cattanach 

 All in favor. 
 
 C. Annual Meeting Task Force 
 

Report is in Board Packet. 
 
Requests that its charter be expanded to include working with Governance Committee to 
both include preparing Annual Report and setting up process for elections to occur at the 
Annual Meeting.  Governance Committee will continue to recruit candidates and inform 
Annual Meeting Committee of candidates. 

 
Motion to accept charter of Annual Meeting Committee and to expand it to include 
development of Annual Report and coordination of Board Elections. 

 Motion:  Susan Phillips 
 Second:  Carolyn Wilson 
 All in favor. 
 
 
 D. Talking Points for 2014 Financial Condition 
 

These were distributed via email earlier today.  There are, in circulation, some 
documents/information about operating loss for calendar 2014.  These talking points 
direct Board members to report (paraphrased): 
 

• Essentially broke even for 2014 
• There was a noticeable sales slow down during the 3rd quarter but 4th quarter saw 

a “bounce back” 
• There were some significant non-recurring expenses, particularly related to 

potential expansion to Parcel J 
• Operations in good shape for 2015, strong sales, improved back room operations 

and realigned staffing 
• Final budget numbers are not yet available but will certainly be included in 

Annual Report in May 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 8 of 9 

 
Motion to accept talking point on 2014 budget. 
Motion:  Mark Roberts 
Second:  Mona Harmon-Bowman 
All in favor. 

 
 
IX. EXECUTIVE SESSON TO ADDRESS PERSONNEL MATTER 
 

Motion to enter executive session at 8:44 p.m. 
Motion:  Mark  
Second:  Carolyn 
All in favor. 
 
Executive session was exited at 9:23 p.m.   
 
Separate minutes of executive session are routinely taken and maintained in a separate 
confidential file.  No decisions were made, President and Vice President are exploring 
options for strengthening existing cooperative management systems. 

 
 
X. CLOSINGS 
 

A. Next Month Agenda (discussed prior to executive session): 
 
Monitoring Reports: 
a. B1 4th quarter revisions 
b. B7: Board Communication 
c. B8: Board Support 
d. C8: Governance Investment 
e. D1: Unity and Control 

 
Board Discussions: 

 
a. Board Budget 
b. Board Succession 
c. Board Retreat 

 
B. Adjournment 
 
Motion to adjourn at 9:25 p.m. 
Motion:  Mona Harmon-Bowman 
Second:   Lisa Cygan 
All in favor. 

 
 



 FIDDLEHEADS BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 Board Meeting of February 17, 2015 [Prepared March 5, 2015] 

PAGE 9 of 9 

 
*            *          *         *         *         *         * 

 
Draft minutes prepared for submission to board by Sue Phillips on March 5, 2015. 
 
Minutes approved by vote of the Board on__________, 2015 and put into final form by Sue 
Phillips on_______, 2015. 



  
Governance Committee 3/3/15  Calendar 

   
February 27 2015 Lead Candidate Letter finalized Mona Harmon-Bowman 

/Helene 
March 1-14 pre-Candidate letter emailed to 

those responding to Lead letter 
Helene by 3/6/15 

March 1 2015 Lead Letter emailed to member 
owners (not included in first 
mailing).  
Inform them of March 21,  Meet 
and Greet. 

Done 
 
 
Done 

March 3 2015 Obtain list of interested 
candidates. 
Email to include list of task 
forces and committees and BoD 
Create poster to invite all 
members (post at Fiddleheads 
registers) 
 
Candidate Packet 

Doing (Helene) 
 
Doing (Helene) by 3/6/15 
 
Check with GC (Mona) by 
3/6/15 
 
 
Doing (Mona) by 3/20) 

March 21 2015 
2:00-3:30 
Meet and Greet 

Flip Chart 
List ?s asked/responses  (FAQs) 
 
Mail FAQs to attendees and 
those who expressed interest 
but could not attend. 
 

Mona 
 
 
 
Helene 

March 22 2015 Application form to those 
expressing interest (both 
attendees and non-attendees). 
 
Include:  List of task forces and 
committees. 
Summarize when, where, how 
task forces are formed. 
 
Ask:  Would you like to be on the 
list of potential candidates 
member-owners ? 

Mona/Helene 

After March 22 Collect applications and set up 
interviews 

Mona, Helene and designated 
others 
 

  



3/11/15 Co-op Cafe debrief meeting, Fiddleheads staff room attended by 2 member-owners, 2 co-
managers, 2 staff, 3 BODs.

1. Lively discussion of:  reaction to the co-op cafe; general message(s) and theme(s) you brought 
back to Fiddleheads.

2. SWOT brainstorming followed answering the question:  
"Given the current competitive landscape, what are Fiddlehead's strengths, 
weaknesses, opportunities, threats?"  
 Responses were charted on flip charts (which still hang on the back wall of the 
staff room for review and future use).  

3. Now, how to communicate and enroll Fiddlehead's staff in the co-op cafe message and gain 
their input in proactive strategic planning?  

4. And, further, how to communicate and enroll member-owners in the co-op message and gain 
their input in proactive strategic planning?

5. Meeting outcomes:  Design and facilitate a staff meeting (using the world co-op cafe format).   
Build discussions around co-op cafe videos.   Meeting tentatively scheduled Sunday, March 22 
in Fiddleheads staff room.     

Note:  3-11-15 email from Mark Goehring) he is uncertain the complete set of videos 
will be available by March 22 date.  
May need to reschedule staff meeting to accommodate videos.

6. Staff Co-op Cafe designers/facilitators represent staff, member-owner, board director:  James 
Burke, Kelleen Giffin, Mona Harmon-Bowman.

7. Proposals for Annual Meeting design -
Is there the capability of showing the co-op cafe video?:  Current Competitive Workplace?  
Does the annual meeting venue lend itself to a world co-op cafe format to obtain input from 
member-owners?

Mona Harmon-Bowman <mharmonbowman@gmail.com>
Mona's notes on 3-11-15 Co-op Cafe Debrief.
March 12, 2015 1:04 PM

 



MANAGERS REPORT
MARCH, 2015

Online Shopping Project
We are excited that we are about to start to set up our online ordering system with My Web Grocer 
(the same company that provides online ordering services to ShopRite).  The process for data entry 
and setup will take 3 to 4 months.  Andrea Hall of our Data Department is the Project Leader.  (See 
attached description for more detail.)

New Server System
To protect our data assets including our investment in a Point of Sale (POS) system we have been 
strongly advised to update our computer system to a server based computer network.  Proposal 
attached.

Space Allocation
We are in the early stages of determining the feasibility of building a kitchen for food preparation of 
Grab 'n Go items and/or Bakery items.  We have visited 3 co-ops to assess their prep areas.  This is a 
longer term project.  We will gather financial data to include labor costs to determine the feasibility 
of this project and present a proposal to the Board.

Personnel
In order to align with appropriate labor needs we reduced the hours of some employees and partially  
redeployed 2 employees to another department.  We were able to reduce total labor hours primarily 
by attrition.  In redeploying current employees we worked to preserve as many of their allotted hours 
as possible.

Beverly Gipson, our Bookkeeper, resigned for health reasons.  We have posted an updated 
Bookkeeping position.  We have also posted the Board Administrator position.  (see attached)
Julia Farrar was hired for the part-time Wellness position.  We welcome her to this growing 
department.

Financials
February Sales - $248,374.  Sales were 14% below our sales projection for February.  February 
weather with 6 serious winter storms and record breaking low temperatures had a significant impact 
on sales sector wide.  Spending was closely monitored and our overall gross margin of 34.8% was 
very close to our target gross margin of 35%.
Labor costs were at 17% of sales in February.  This is below our target of 19%.  (This is a good 
thing.)  Margin Minus Labor = 17.8% for February which exceeded our goal of 16%.

Insurance
Kapatoes Insurance Services, LLC, has completed an assessment of our current insurance. (see 
attached letter).  This is an update to the January Monitoring Report on Asset Protection B3.2.

Food for All
A new program to address the needs of those who have financial challenges will begin in April, 
2015.  It will offer those with EBT, WIC and SSI an opportunity to have a discount on their 
purchases.  There will be a short application and the program will use cards that are identical to (but, 
coded differently) member cards.  This program will replace the Healthy Food Access (HFA) 
program which was difficult to maintain.  The HFA program ended on February 28, 2015.

Outreach
Beginning in March the Outreach Department is hosting an Adult Veggie Passport program.  This 
program, with some modifications, is similar to the Children's Veggie Passport program that Outreach 
hosted last summer.  Sampling, Culinary Tours and Membership Orientations continue.  A new 
member packet has been developed which will be given to each new member.

Co-op Cafe
Fiddleheads had a terrific showing for the March 7th Co-op Cafe in Keene, NH.  Attending from 
Working Members and Staff:  Ellen Anthony, James Burke, Kelleen Giffin, Sheila Herbert, Paul 



Shaffer, BB Smith and John Smith.  Attending from the Board: Lisa Cygan, Mona Harmon-Bowman, 
Mark Roberts, Carolyn Wilson and Susan Zimmerman – 12 altogether!  In a brief discussion after the 
cafe all from Fiddleheads agreed that there was good energy, good information, good networking and 
constructive ideas to bring back home from this event.  We will meet to debrief on Wednesday, 
March 11th.

1st Quarter 2015 Inventory
Scheduled for the weekend of March 28th and 29th.



Proposal Summary – Online Ordering 
Online	  ordering	  or	  E-‐Commerce	  represents	  a	  significant	  line	  item	  in	  this	  year’s	  budget	  (~$15,000).	  	  We	  
see	  this	  investment	  as	  a	  necessary	  expense	  to	  both	  maintain	  and	  expand	  our	  customer	  base	  in	  an	  
increasingly	  competitive	  market.	  	  Growing	  numbers	  of	  consumers	  are	  looking	  for	  the	  ability	  to	  shop	  
online.	  	  At	  maturity,	  online	  shopping	  is	  estimated	  to	  provide	  grocery	  retailers	  with	  an	  additional	  10%	  
annual	  sales	  growth	  and	  typically	  involves	  a	  basket	  size	  of	  $155	  with	  45	  items	  and	  a	  20%	  increased	  
spending	  per	  customer.	  	  Our	  goal	  is	  to	  implement	  an	  online	  platform	  that	  will	  increase	  access	  and	  use	  of	  
our	  goods	  and	  services	  and	  highlight	  the	  benefits	  of	  the	  co-‐op.	  	  By	  doing	  so,	  we	  hope	  to	  demonstrate	  
our	  responsiveness	  to	  our	  members’	  needs	  and	  increase	  our	  accessibility	  to	  a	  larger	  market	  share	  and	  to	  
do	  this	  by	  securing	  our	  position	  in	  the	  online	  market	  before	  our	  competitors.	  

The	  initial	  buy-‐in	  for	  e-‐commerce	  is	  high	  and	  it	  will	  take	  several	  years	  to	  develop	  a	  mature	  online	  
shopping	  presence.	  	  We	  believe	  strongly	  that	  this	  should	  be	  done	  correctly	  from	  the	  start	  and	  have	  
investigated	  options.	  	  We	  do	  not	  have	  the	  technical	  ability	  in-‐house	  to	  modify	  open-‐source	  shopping	  
cart	  software;	  research	  on	  companies	  who	  design	  and	  maintain	  an	  online	  shopping	  site	  has	  led	  us	  to	  
pursue	  a	  relationship	  with	  the	  company,	  My	  Web	  Grocer	  (MWG).	  	  MWG	  is	  based	  in	  Burlington,	  VT	  and	  
has	  large	  clients,	  such	  as	  Shop	  Rite	  as	  well	  as	  smaller,	  single-‐store	  clients.	  	  MWG	  has	  the	  technical	  ability,	  
experience,	  customer	  responsiveness	  we	  want	  and	  the	  knowledge	  base	  to	  help	  us	  launch	  and	  maintain	  a	  
successful	  online	  shopping	  expansion	  of	  Fiddleheads.	  

Working	  with	  MWG	  and	  entering	  into	  a	  contract	  soon	  will	  allow	  us	  to	  launch	  our	  online	  ordering	  
services	  this	  summer	  (expectation	  of	  June	  30,	  2015).	  	  We	  plan	  to	  use	  this	  service	  to	  build	  our	  growing	  
Block	  and	  Fisher’s	  Island	  customer	  base	  –	  residents	  of	  these	  communities	  expressed	  a	  strong	  desire	  in	  
our	  developing	  an	  online	  ordering	  platform	  last	  year.	  	  It	  is	  worth	  noting	  that	  Whole	  Foods	  is	  beginning	  a	  
delivery	  service	  to	  the	  Islands	  this	  summer.	  	  Concurrent	  with	  the	  summer	  Island	  deliveries,	  we	  will	  begin	  
offering	  pick-‐up	  services.	  	  The	  process	  for	  pick-‐up	  is	  as	  follows:	  Customers	  place	  an	  order	  online	  and	  
select	  a	  pick-‐up	  time	  slot.	  	  We	  receive	  the	  order,	  “pick”	  it	  (pull	  the	  items	  from	  the	  shelves),	  pack	  it	  and	  
finalize	  the	  transaction.	  	  Customers	  arrive	  during	  their	  selected	  time	  slot	  and	  park	  in	  a	  designated	  area.	  	  
We	  bring	  their	  order	  out	  to	  the	  car.	  	  With	  the	  features	  MWG	  can	  offer	  us	  and	  our	  customers	  and	  our	  
demonstrated	  responsiveness	  to	  customer	  shopping	  trends,	  we	  strongly	  feel	  that	  our	  expansion	  into	  
online	  shopping	  will	  be	  successful	  and	  an	  important	  growth	  step	  for	  Fiddleheads.	  	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  



Proposal Summary – Data Security 
Fiddleheads	  has	  invested	  significantly	  in	  our	  Point-‐of-‐Sale	  system,	  inventory	  database,	  computers	  and	  
small	  electronics.	  	  Currently,	  this	  fixed	  asset	  is	  in	  dire	  need	  of	  an	  updated	  security	  protocol	  -‐	  our	  
computers	  (including	  the	  registers)	  are	  in	  various	  states	  of	  protection	  from	  viruses	  and	  malware	  and	  
there	  is	  no	  offsite	  backup	  of	  the	  Point-‐of-‐Sale	  database	  information.	  	  Additionally,	  our	  previous	  
approach	  of	  a	  slapped-‐together	  shared	  company	  network	  can	  no	  longer	  support	  our	  computing	  
requirements.	  	  This	  issue	  needs	  to	  be	  addressed	  immediately.	  	  We	  have	  asked	  CCI	  to	  put	  together	  a	  plan	  
for	  us	  to	  become	  compliant	  with	  basic	  data	  security	  for	  a	  small	  business	  by	  the	  end	  of	  April,	  2015.	  	  The	  
proposal	  we	  received	  includes	  the	  switch	  to	  a	  server-‐based	  computer	  network.	  	  This	  change	  will	  allow	  us	  
to	  keep	  all	  computers	  on	  our	  network	  safely	  up-‐to-‐date	  with	  antivirus	  and	  malware	  protection	  as	  well	  as	  
basic	  computer	  and	  software	  updates.	  	  The	  server	  system	  also	  will	  allow	  individual	  users	  to	  log-‐in	  to	  any	  
computer	  we	  have	  setup	  on	  our	  network	  and	  access	  their	  own	  files	  and	  those	  shared	  with	  them.	  	  This	  
feature	  will	  bring	  us	  into	  compliance	  with	  matters	  of	  confidentiality	  that	  are	  currently	  not	  well	  handled.	  	  
CCI	  is	  able	  to	  provide	  us	  with	  a	  used	  IBM	  server	  designed	  for	  small	  business	  use,	  saving	  us	  ~$5000.	  	  The	  
proposal	  total	  of	  $5500	  includes	  the	  equipment,	  setup	  (including	  redundancy	  in	  the	  system	  for	  local	  
backup)	  and	  go-‐live	  support.	  	  We	  have	  requested	  to	  add	  an	  additional	  fee	  of	  $50	  per	  month	  for	  off-‐site	  
data	  backup	  that	  we	  view	  as	  essential	  for	  protecting	  our	  investment	  of	  time	  and	  energy	  in	  developing	  
and	  maintaining	  our	  inventory	  database.	  



1	  
	  

	  
	  

	  
	  
	  
	  

Board	  Administrator	  Job	  Posting	  
	  
Fiddleheads	  Cooperative	  is	  seeking	  an	  administrator	  to	  support	  the	  work	  of	  the	  Board	  of	  
Directors.	  This	  is	  a	  part	  time	  (~10	  hours	  per	  month),	  hourly	  position	  reporting	  to	  the	  General	  
Manager	  and	  accountable	  to	  the	  Board	  President.	  The	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  provide	  
administrative	  and	  coordinating	  support	  for	  the	  Board.	  	  The	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  need	  to	  
have	  flexibility	  in	  scheduling	  in	  order	  perform	  job	  duties,	  which	  will	  include	  attending	  evening	  
board	  meetings,	  providing	  administrative	  support	  outside	  of	  the	  meeting,	  and	  on	  occasion,	  
provide	  support	  for	  special	  events.	  An	  essential	  role	  requirement	  is	  previous	  experience	  in	  
handling	  confidential	  information,	  as	  well	  as,	  experience	  in	  minute	  taking	  for	  boards,	  leadership	  
or	  project	  teams.	  Support	  employees	  receive	  a	  15%	  employee	  discount.	  
	  
Minimal	  requirements	  for	  the	  role:	  

• Previous	  experience	  in	  handling	  confidential	  information.	  
• Previous	  experience	  in	  minute	  taking	  for	  boards,	  leadership	  or	  project	  teams.	  	  	  
• Demonstration	  of	  excellent	  verbal,	  written	  and	  planning	  skills.	  	  	  
• Strong	  computer	  skills	  and	  technical	  proficiency	  with	  Word,	  Excel	  and	  PowerPoint.	  	  
• Previous	  experience	  in	  the	  coordination	  of	  special	  events	  such	  as	  meetings,	  

conferences,	  or	  similar	  activities.	  
• High	  School	  graduate	  or	  GED	  

	  
Preferred	  requirements	  for	  the	  role:	  

• Associate	  degree	  or	  higher	  
• Previous	  experience	  in	  a	  Cooperative	  business	  
• Previous	  experience	  with	  software	  programs	  Adobe	  Acrobat	  and	  Survey	  Monkey.	  	  

	  
  

  

Complete  job  descriptions  and  applications  for  the  above  position  can  be  found  
at  www.fiddleheadsfood.coop.  Please  include  both  the  application  provided  and  a  current  
resume.  Accepting  applications  until  positions  are  filled.  Completed  applications,  cover  letters  
and  resumes  should  be  directed  to  Kristin  DeMuzzio,  Co-‐Manager  at  
KristinDemuzzio@fiddleheadsfood.coop.  

	  
	  
	  



	   2	  

Board	  Administrator	  Job	  Description	  
	  
Reports	  to:	  	  General	  Manager	  with	  performance	  accountability	  to	  the	  Board	  President	  
Status:	  	  	  Support	  staff,	  hourly,	  part-‐time	  (~10	  hours	  per	  month)	  
Rate:	  $11.00/hour	  
Location:	  	  	  The	  Board	  administrator	  will	  attend	  the	  monthly	  evening	  Board	  meetings,	  and	  will	  be	  
expected	  to	  complete	  administrative	  and	  coordinating	  duties	  at	  the	  Co-‐op.	  
	  
Position	  Summary:	  
Provide	  administrative	  support	  for	  the	  Board	  President	  and	  Directors	  including	  coordination	  and	  
dissemination	  of	  materials	  for	  the	  board	  meetings	  and	  any	  additional	  communication	  and	  
correspondence.	  	  Attend	  and	  record	  notes	  for	  all	  board	  meetings.	  	  Provide	  coordination	  and	  logistics	  for	  
meeting	  and	  event	  needs.	  	  Maintain	  all	  correspondence,	  reports,	  minutes	  and	  archives	  for	  the	  Board,	  
and	  disseminate	  as	  appropriate,	  to	  the	  broader	  cooperative	  membership. 
 

Job	  Duties	  and	  Responsibilities	  
	  

Administrative	  and	  Coordinating:	  
• Provides	  administrative	  support	  to	  General	  Manager,	  Board	  President	  and	  Board	  Secretary	  on	  

board	  related	  matters.	  	  May	  provide	  support	  to	  sub-‐committees	  of	  the	  board,	  as	  needed.	  
• Coordinates	  and	  disseminates	  materials	  for	  the	  Board	  to	  be	  prepared	  for	  meetings	  and	  retreats.	  
• Attends	  and	  records	  notes	  for	  all	  board	  meetings.	  
• Prepares	  draft-‐meeting	  minutes	  in	  approved	  format.	  
• Arranges	  logistics	  for	  board	  meetings,	  annual	  membership	  meeting	  and	  retreats.	  
• Publicizes	  board	  and	  committee	  meetings	  times	  and	  agendas,	  and	  coordinates	  communication,	  

as	  needed,	  with	  other	  co-‐op	  staff	  to	  the	  broader	  membership.	  
• Maintaining	  board	  area	  of	  Fiddlehead	  web	  site,	  posting	  approved	  minutes	  and	  other	  items	  as	  

directed.	  
• Prepares,	  maintains	  and	  distributes	  Board	  Handbook	  and	  Board	  Policy	  Manual.	  
• Maintains	  board	  calendar,	  task	  lists	  and	  other	  organizing	  tools	  as	  needed.	  
• Locates	  and	  compiles	  information	  for	  the	  Board,	  as	  requested.	  
• Composes	  reports	  and	  correspondence	  for	  the	  Board.	  
• Maintains	  records	  and	  board	  archives	  including	  approved	  minutes,	  Bylaws	  and	  affected	  

documents.	  
• Facilitates	  member	  access	  to	  public	  portions	  of	  board	  records.	  
• May	  perform	  regulatory	  compliance	  duties	  for	  business	  licenses.	  

	  
Additional	  General	  Responsibilities:	  

• Attend	  staff	  meetings	  and	  staff	  training	  sessions.	  	  	  
• Maintain	  good	  working	  relations	  with	  other	  Fiddleheads	  staff.	  
• Encourage	  and	  demonstrate	  good	  team	  behaviors.	  	  	  
• Follow	  storewide	  policies	  &	  procedures	  and	  the	  expectations	  outlined	  in	  the	  Employee	  

Handbook.	  
	  



1 | P a g e  
 

MONITORING	  REPORT,	  MARCH	  17,	  2015	  

Policy:	  B7	  –	  Communication	  to	  the	  Board,	  Last	  revised:	  June	  18,	  2013	  

We	  report	  compliance	  with	  all	  parts	  of	  this	  policy.	  
	  
We	  certify	  that	  the	  information	  contained	  in	  this	  report	  and	  attachments	  is	  true.	  
	  
Signed______________________________________,	  Co-‐	  Manager	  
	  
Signed______________________________________,	  Co-‐	  Manager	  
	  
Attachment:	  Monitoring	  Summary	  Table	  Sample	  
	  
The	  General	  Manager	  shall	  not	  cause	  or	  allow	  the	  Board	  to	  be	  uninformed	  or	  unsupported	  in	  its	  work.	  

Interpretation:	  

We	  interpret	  this	  to	  mean	  that	  GM	  is	  accountable	  for	  ensuring	  that	  the	  Board	  has	  adequate	  information	  
to	  make	  Board	  decisions.	  Support	  for	  logistical	  and	  administrative	  matters	  is	  dealt	  with	  in	  policy	  B8	  –	  
Board	  Logistical	  Support.	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• The	  Board	  has	  fully	  defined	  this	  policy	  in	  the	  sub-‐policies	  below.	  Please	  look	  there	  for	  further	  
definitions.	  

Data:	  

• See	  data	  for	  each	  sub-‐policy.	  

The	  GM	  will	  not:	  

1. Submit	  monitoring	  reports	  that	  are	  untimely,	  inaccurate,	  or	  hard	  to	  understand.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  will	  submit	  monitoring	  reports	  to	  the	  Board	  according	  to	  the	  schedule	  outlined	  in	  the	  Board	  
Annual	  Calendar.	  These	  reports	  will	  be	  written	  so	  that	  the	  Board	  can	  determine	  whether	  or	  not	  the	  
GM/Co-‐op	  is	  in	  compliance	  with	  the	  policy	  being	  reported	  on.	  Board	  approval	  of	  these	  reports	  will	  
signify	  that	  the	  Board	  agrees	  the	  reports	  are	  correct	  and	  reasonable.	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• Compliance	  will	  be	  determined	  using	  the	  Monitoring	  Summary	  Table	  which	  shall	  be	  maintained	  
by	  the	  Board	  Secretary	  for	  the	  D4	  –	  Monitoring	  GM	  Performance	  policy.	  
Data:	  

• See	  the	  attached	  Monitoring	  Summary	  Table	  Sample.	  

	  

2. Report	  any	  actual	  or	  anticipated	  noncompliance	  with	  any	  policy	  of	  the	  Board	  in	  an	  untimely	  
manner.	  

	  

	  



2 | P a g e  
 

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  responsible	  for	  ensuring	  compliance	  with	  Board	  policies,	  as	  defined	  by	  GM	  operational	  
interpretations,	  at	  all	  times.	  	  Immediately	  following	  the	  GMs’	  awareness	  of	  any	  perceived	  or	  actual	  
noncompliance	  items,	  they	  will	  inform	  the	  Board	  in	  its	  monthly	  report	  at	  the	  next	  board	  meeting.	  	  
	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• The	  monthly	  update	  report	  will	  include	  notices	  of	  anticipated	  and	  actual	  non-‐compliance	  as	  
needed.	  

• Monthly	  monitoring	  reports	  will	  include	  notice	  of	  actual	  non-‐compliance	  as	  needed.	  

• In	  the	  case	  of	  a	  serious	  non-‐compliant	  issue,	  the	  GM	  will	  inform	  the	  Board	  President	  promptly.	  

Data:	  

• Non-‐compliance	  issues	  noted	  in	  monthly	  updates:	  None.	  

• Non-‐compliance	  issues	  noted	  in	  regular	  monitoring	  reports	  

Date	   Policy	   Non-‐compliance	  issue	  

02/17/15	   B1.4	   Quick	  Ratio	  

02/17/15	   B1.8	   Tax	  Payments	  

	  

• Serious	  non-‐compliance	  issues	  noted	  immediately	  to	  Board	  President:	  None	  

3. Allow	  the	  Board	  to	  be	  unaware	  of	  relevant	  trends,	  public	  events	  of	  the	  Cooperative,	  or	  internal	  
and	  external	  changes	  which	  may	  affect	  Board	  policy.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  responsible	  for	  assuring	  that	  the	  Board	  has	  all	  the	  information	  and	  data	  it	  needs	  in	  order	  to	  
make	  sound,	  thoughtful	  decisions	  related	  to	  its	  work.	  This	  information	  is	  mainly	  long-‐term,	  big-‐picture	  
or	  high-‐impact	  in	  nature	  rather	  than	  daily	  and	  routine	  operational	  matters.	  Examples	  of	  significant	  
operational	  changes	  might	  include	  major	  shifts	  in	  product	  mix,	  new	  programs,	  a	  store	  relocation	  or	  
major	  changes	  in	  personnel	  –	  changes	  that	  materially	  affect	  customers’	  and	  members’	  perception	  of	  the	  
Co-‐op.	  The	  GM	  is	  responsible	  for	  providing	  sufficient	  warning	  of	  such	  possible	  major	  operational	  
changes	  to	  make	  certain	  that	  the	  Board	  is	  notified	  and,	  so	  that	  it	  has	  time	  to	  discuss	  and	  analyze	  any	  
possible	  impacts	  to	  existing	  Board	  policy.	  

Since	  the	  typical	  reporting	  schedule	  of	  the	  limitations	  policies	  are	  only	  reported	  on	  annually,	  it	  does	  not	  
always	  adequately	  meet	  the	  Board’s	  needs	  in	  receiving	  timely	  information.	  Therefore,	  the	  GM	  will	  
provide	  monthly	  communications	  to	  the	  Board	  in	  the	  form	  of	  a	  monthly	  managers	  report.	  
	  
Operational	  Definitions:	  

• Monthly	  monitoring	  reports	  will	  include	  historical	  and/or	  trend	  information	  when	  the	  
information	  is	  obtainable	  and	  conceivably	  useful	  to	  the	  board.	  

• The	  GM	  monthly	  update	  report	  will	  include	  information	  about	  possible	  and/or	  anticipated	  
significant	  operational	  changes	  at	  least	  2	  months	  in	  advance	  of	  those	  changes.	  



3 | P a g e  
 

• The	  GM	  will	  provide	  a	  monthly	  written	  update	  report	  in	  support	  of	  this	  policy.	  Content	  examples	  
might	  include:	  
o Financial	  information	  relevant	  to	  board	  work.	  
o Ownership	  level	  issues	  that	  help	  the	  board	  see	  the	  broad	  view.	  
o Public	  events	  (activities	  and	  gatherings	  both	  on	  and	  off	  premise)	  that	  may	  affect	  the	  
perception	  of	  the	  Co-‐op	  with	  customers,	  members	  and	  in	  the	  community.	  
o Internal	  and	  external	  changes	  like	  significant	  modifications	  to	  the	  normal	  pattern	  of	  
business.	  	  
o Personnel	  matters	  of	  any	  significance,	  examples	  include	  professional	  training,	  promotions,	  
reallocation	  of	  or	  reduction	  in	  labor	  hours.	  	  
o Occurrences	  related	  to	  equipment,	  and	  building	  maintenance	  and/or	  security.	  	  

• In	  the	  case	  of	  confidential	  matters,	  the	  GM	  will	  report	  on	  these	  subjects	  in	  Executive	  Session	  
rather	  than	  in	  the	  written	  monthly	  report.	  

• In	  situations	  when	  the	  Board	  needs	  to	  be	  informed	  about	  matters	  of	  a	  more	  critical	  nature,	  the	  
GM	  will	  contact	  the	  Board	  President	  or	  the	  entire	  board	  directly.	  
	  
Data:	  

• Monitoring	  reports	  containing	  historical	  and/or	  trend	  information.	  	  NOTE:	  GMs	  have	  begun	  
collecting	  relevant	  historical	  data	  to	  build	  further	  trend	  analysis	  information.	  In	  addition,	  the	  GMs	  have	  
completed	  the	  final	  upload	  for	  use	  with	  CoMetrics,	  another	  valuable	  reporting	  and	  examination	  
instrument.	  

Report	   Date(s)	  

B1—Financial	  Conditions	   11/18/14	  

02/17/15	  

B2—Planning	  &	  Financial	  Budgeting	   12/16/14	  

B3—Asset	  Protection	   01/20/15	  

B6—Staff	  Treatment	   11/05/14	  

B7—Board	  Communication	   03/17/15	  

B8—Logistical	  Support	  	   03/17/15	  

	  

• The	  2015-‐16	  Strategic	  Plan	  submitted	  to	  the	  Board	  on	  December	  16,	  2014	  included	  priorities	  for	  
online	  shopping,	  space	  re-‐allocation	  and	  NCG	  membership.	  No	  other	  significant	  changes	  are	  planned	  in	  
this	  reporting	  period.	  

• Since	  the	  Co-‐managers	  took	  over	  operations	  for	  the	  Co-‐op,	  they	  have	  submitted	  to	  the	  Board	  
every	  month	  a	  written	  communication	  in	  support	  of	  the	  B7	  policy.	  	  
	  
	  

Report	  Date	   Topics	  Included	  

	  10/20/14	   Events,	  Training,	  Personnel,	  Equipment,	  Sales,	  
Finances,	  Grievance	  Cmtte,	  Safety	  Cmtte	  



4 | P a g e  
 

11/05/14	   Parcel	  J,	  NCG,	  Budget	  &	  Strategic	  Plan,	  Staff	  
Development	  &	  Training,	  Events,	  Marketing	  	  

12/10/14	   Events,	  Staff	  Development,	  Finances,	  Policy	  
Governance,	  Sales,	  Personnel	  

01/10/15	   Events,	  Personnel,	  Security,	  Finances	  

02/10/15	   Events,	  Staff	  Development,	  Training,	  Personnel,	  
Financials,	  Payroll,	  CoMetrics	  

03/10/15	   Events,	  Personnel,	  Sales,	  Staff	  Development,	  New	  
Programs	  and	  Projects	  

	  
• Executive	  Session	  (confidential)	  reports:	  None	  

• GM	  communication	  to	  the	  Board	  President	  via	  monthly	  meetings	  
	  

Meeting	  Date	   Topics	  included	  

09/10/14	   Personnel,	  Financials	  

09/30/14	   Financials,	  Budgets,	  Legal	  Matters	  

10/13/14	   Security	  Matters,	  Personnel,	  CFNE	  

11/03/14	   Parcel	  J,	  Monitoring,	  Financials	  

11/13/15	   Board	  Support	  &	  Communication	  

12/01/14	   CERC,	  Store	  Reset,	  Cash	  Flow,	  
Communication,	  Restricted	  Funds	  

01/05/15	   CDS	  Training,	  Board	  Admin,	  Parcel	  
J,	  Monitoring,	  Inventory	  

	  

4. Withhold	  his/her	  opinion	  if	  the	  GM	  believes	  the	  Board	  is	  not	  in	  compliance	  with	  its	  own	  policies	  
on	  Governance	  Process	  and	  Board-‐Management	  Delegation,	  particularly	  in	  the	  case	  of	  Board	  
behavior	  that	  is	  detrimental	  to	  the	  work	  relationship	  between	  the	  Board	  and	  the	  GM.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  obligated	  to	  notify	  the	  board	  if	  in	  his	  or	  her	  opinion	  the	  board	  is	  not	  acting	  in	  harmony	  with	  its	  
board	  policies.	  
	  
Operational	  Definitions:	  

• The	  GM	  monthly	  report	  will	  include,	  as	  needed,	  notes	  about	  the	  GM’s	  view	  regarding	  Board	  
behavior	  including	  individual	  board	  members.	  	  

• In	  addition,	  the	  GM	  will	  alert	  the	  board	  during	  support	  calls,	  monthly	  meetings,	  via	  email	  and/or	  
in	  written	  form	  of	  any	  board	  related	  behavior	  that	  is	  impacting	  their	  ability	  to	  work	  in	  the	  conditions	  set	  
forth	  in	  the	  policy	  manual.	  	  

	  



5 | P a g e  
 

Data:	  

• Co-‐managers	  held	  conference	  calls	  with	  CDS	  consultants	  Marilyn	  Scholl	  and	  Joel	  Kopischke	  to	  
request	  support	  with	  building	  and	  strengthening	  board/GM	  relationship	  and	  its	  behavior.	  

• Co-‐managers	  sent	  a	  request	  to	  the	  board	  in	  an	  email	  asking	  them	  to	  consider	  watching	  two	  CDS	  
videos	  to	  begin	  a	  dialogue	  that	  would	  help	  strengthen	  their	  relationship	  with	  the	  board.	  

• Co-‐managers	  met	  with	  the	  board	  president	  and	  vice	  president	  separately	  to	  discuss	  board	  
processes	  and	  behaviors	  that	  they	  felt	  were	  impacting	  their	  ability	  to	  work	  effectively.	  

• Support	  Calls	  with	  CDS	  Consulting	  2014-‐15	  
	  

Call	  Date	   Topics	  

10/14/14	   NCG,	  Personnel,	  Parcel	  J	  

12/04/14	   BOD/Staff	  Relations,	  Monitoring,	  
Communication,	  Board	  Support	  

02/03-‐4/15	   GM/BOD	  Relationship,	  Audit,	  Insurance,	  Roles	  
&	  Responsibilities,	  Staff,	  Quarterly	  Check-‐ins	  

02/25/15	   GM/BOD	  Roles	  &	  Responsibilities,	  
Communication	  

	  
5. Deal	  with	  the	  Board	  in	  a	  way	  that	  favors	  or	  privileges	  certain	  Board	  members	  over	  others	  except	  

when	  responding	  to	  officers	  or	  committees	  duly	  charged	  by	  the	  Board.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  accountable	  in	  helping	  the	  Board	  maintain	  its	  obligation	  to	  holism	  as	  articulated	  in	  Board	  
policy	  D1	  –	  Unity	  of	  Control.	  We	  recognize	  that	  only	  the	  Board	  as	  a	  single	  body	  has	  any	  authority.	  We	  
also	  understand	  we	  can	  interact	  with	  any	  director	  in	  any	  way	  we	  choose	  as	  long	  as	  we	  do	  not	  give	  that	  
director	  any	  decision-‐making	  authority,	  and	  as	  long	  as	  that	  director	  does	  not	  receive	  any	  advantage	  that	  
is	  not	  afforded	  to	  all	  directors.	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• Compliance	  is	  determined	  by	  directors	  notifying	  the	  GM,	  or	  board	  president,	  who	  then	  tells	  the	  
GM,	  of	  any	  out	  of	  compliance	  situation.	  
	  
Data:	  

• No	  known	  out	  of	  compliance	  situations	  have	  been	  received	  in	  this	  reporting	  period.	  
	  

6. Fail	  to	  supply	  for	  the	  Board’s	  consent	  agenda	  all	  decisions	  delegated	  to	  the	  GM	  yet	  required	  by	  
law,	  regulation,	  or	  contract	  to	  be	  Board-‐approved.	  

	  

Interpretation:	  

We	  interpret	  this	  to	  mean	  that	  the	  GM	  is	  responsible	  for	  informing	  the	  board	  of	  any	  grant	  or	  other	  small	  
agreement	  (that	  is	  operational	  in	  scope)	  which	  the	  Co-‐op	  may	  want	  to	  engage	  with	  an	  outside	  



6 | P a g e  
 

organization	  or	  government	  agency	  that	  requires	  a	  board	  signature	  but	  that	  the	  board	  has	  delegated	  to	  
the	  GM.	  Using	  a	  consent	  agenda	  format	  as	  part	  of	  the	  policy	  governance	  model,	  the	  GM	  must	  bring	  
forth	  any	  background	  information	  to	  the	  board	  so	  that	  can	  consent	  can	  happen	  in	  a	  timely	  manner.	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• The	  Co-‐op’s	  Articles	  of	  Incorporation	  require	  that	  any	  time	  a	  member	  wishes	  the	  board	  to	  
refund	  their	  equity	  investment	  this	  information	  will	  be	  presented	  to	  them	  for	  approval.	  	  

• Other	  matters	  necessitating	  board	  consent	  to	  fulfill	  the	  requirements	  of	  banks,	  insurance	  
carriers,	  governmental	  agencies,	  etc.,	  will	  be	  presented	  to	  the	  board	  as	  needed.	  

Data:	  

• At	  no	  time	  during	  this	  reporting	  period	  has	  any	  member	  requested	  a	  refund	  of	  their	  equity	  
investment.	  

• The	  Board	  President	  signed	  bank	  forms	  giving	  the	  Co-‐managers	  authorization	  to	  access	  the	  Co-‐
op	  accounts	  and	  write	  checks.	  	  

• The	  Board	  President	  signed	  a	  letter	  authorizing	  the	  Co-‐managers	  the	  ability	  to	  have	  keys	  made	  
for	  the	  Co-‐op.	  	  

• The	  Board	  President	  signed	  a	  document	  giving	  the	  Co-‐managers	  the	  authority	  to	  modify	  
insurance	  coverage	  as	  needed.	  





1	  |	  P a g e 	  
	  

MONITORING	  REPORT,	  MARCH	  17,	  2015	  

Policy:	  B8	  –Board	  Logistical	  Support,	  Last	  revised:	  June	  18,	  2013	  

We	  report	  compliance	  with	  all	  parts	  of	  this	  policy.	  

We	  certify	  that	  the	  information	  contained	  in	  this	  report	  and	  attachments	  is	  true.	  

Signed______________________________________,	  Co-‐General	  Manager	  

Signed______________________________________,	  Co-‐General	  Manager	  

Attachment:	  Board	  Administrator	  Job	  Description	  

The	  General	  Manager	  will	  not	  allow	  the	  Board	  to	  have	  inadequate	  logistical	  support.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  in	  charge	  of	  providing	  administrative	  assistance	  to	  the	  Board	  in	  order	  to	  ensure	  that	  directors	  
can	  concentrate	  on	  their	  governance	  role.	  Maintaining	  this	  support	  is	  the	  responsibility	  of	  the	  GM	  even	  
when	  further	  delegation	  occurs.	  

The	  GM	  will	  not:	  

1. Provide	  for	  insufficient	  staff	  administration	  to	  support	  governance	  activities	  and	  Board	  
communication.	  (Proposed	  sub-‐policy)	  

Interpretation:	  

In	  order	  to	  achieve	  this	  logistical	  support	  the	  GM	  may	  appoint/hire	  one	  co-‐op	  employee	  to	  be	  designated	  as	  
a	  Board	  Administrator.	  Though	  this	  employee	  will	  serve	  the	  needs	  of	  the	  board,	  he	  or	  she	  will	  be	  supervised	  
solely	  by	  the	  GM	  and	  may	  have	  other	  duties	  outside	  of	  its	  board	  support	  role.	  

Operational	  Definitions:	  

• One	  co-‐op	  employee	  will	  act	  as	  Board	  Administrator.	  

• Working	  cooperatively	  with	  the	  Board	  President	  and	  Secretary,	  the	  GM	  will	  affirm	  that	  
administrative	  support	  is	  sufficient.	  

• The	  GM	  will	  be	  the	  primary	  supervisor	  and	  evaluator	  of	  the	  Board	  Administrator.	  

• All	  wages	  for	  the	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  be	  part	  of	  the	  annual	  Board	  budget.	  

• The	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  be	  responsible	  for	  maintenance	  and	  distribution	  of	  all	  
correspondence,	  reports,	  minutes	  and	  archives	  for	  the	  Board,	  and	  disseminate	  as	  appropriate,	  to	  the	  
broader	  cooperative	  membership.	  

Data:	  

• At	  the	  request	  of	  the	  Board,	  a	  Board	  Administrator	  position	  was	  created	  collaboratively	  with	  the	  
Board	  and	  GM	  in	  February	  2015,	  and	  posted	  both	  internally	  and	  externally	  on	  March	  7,	  2015.	  

• Immediately	  following	  the	  hire	  of	  this	  position,	  the	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  commence	  fulfilling	  
all	  of	  the	  duties	  and	  obligations	  of	  the	  job	  as	  referenced	  here	  is	  this	  B8	  monitoring	  report.	  (See	  attached	  
Job	  Description)	  



2	  |	  P a g e 	  
	  

• The	  sample	  table	  below	  will	  show	  the	  results	  of	  a	  board	  survey	  to	  be	  used	  as	  an	  
evaluation/performance	  tool	  to	  demonstrate	  satisfactory	  results.	  	  This	  survey	  will	  be	  created	  using	  
SurveyMonkey	  and	  conducted	  in	  August	  2015.	  	  

	  

Board	  Administrator	  job	  duties	  and	  responsibilities	  for	  “sufficient	  
governance	  support”	  

Board	  
President	  

Board	  
Secretary	  

Administrative	  support	  provided	  to	  Board	  President	  and	  Secretary	  on	  
Board	  related	  matters	  (including	  research	  and	  correspondence)	  

	  	   	  	  

Materials	  coordinated,	  compiled	  and	  disseminated	  for	  the	  Board	  so	  it	  is	  
prepared	  for	  meetings	  and	  retreats	  

	  	   	  	  

Draft	  meeting	  minutes,	  policies	  and	  bylaws	  provided	   	  	   	  	  

Logistics	  arranged	  for	  board	  meetings,	  retreats	  and	  Annual	  Meeting	   	  	   	  	  

Board	  calendar,	  task	  lists	  and	  other	  organizing	  tools	  maintained	  as	  
needed	  

	  	   	  	  	  	  

Information	  located	  and	  compiled	  for	  Board	  as	  requested	   	  	   	  	  

Reports	  and	  correspondence	  composed	  for	  Board	  as	  requested	   	  	   	  	  

Board	  records	  and	  archives	  maintained,	  including	  approved	  minutes,	  
Bylaws	  and	  affected	  documents	  

	  	   	  	  

Minutes,	  board	  activities,	  events	  and	  any	  supporting	  documents	  posted	  
to	  the	  website	  in	  a	  timely	  manner	  

	   	  

Overall	  performance	  is	  supportive	  of	  Board	  activities	   	  	   	  	  

	  
	  

2. Allow	  Board	  Members	  to	  be	  without	  an	  updated	  copy	  of	  the	  Policy	  Manual	  and	  the	  Bylaws.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  is	  responsible	  for	  ensuring	  that	  board	  members	  have	  access	  to	  the	  current	  Fiddleheads	  Co-‐op	  
Policy	  Manual	  and	  Bylaws	  when	  they	  become	  board	  members	  and	  access	  to	  any	  updates	  in	  a	  timely	  
manner.	  
	  
Operational	  Definitions:	  
• New	  directors	  will	  receive	  a	  board	  notebook	  containing	  a	  paper	  copy	  of	  the	  current	  Policy	  
Manual	  and	  Bylaws	  before	  their	  first	  official	  board	  meeting.	  

• All	  directors	  will	  receive	  a	  paper	  copy	  of	  any	  revised	  policies	  in	  the	  next	  board	  packet	  following	  
approval	  of	  the	  revision.	  

• The	  most	  current	  Policy	  Manual	  and	  Bylaws	  will	  be	  posted	  on	  the	  co-‐op	  website.	  

	  



3	  |	  P a g e 	  
	  

Data:	  

• Directors	  who	  joined	  the	  board	  this	  year	  

Director	   1st	  official	  meeting	   Date	  of	  receipt	  of	  
board	  notebook	  

Lisa	  Cygan	   02/17/15	   Previous	  board	  
member	  

	  

• Updated	  policies	  provided	  in	  board	  packets:	  None.	  (No	  policies	  have	  been	  modified	  during	  this	  
reporting	  period.)	  

• On	  the	  board	  page	  of	  the	  co-‐op’s	  website	  you	  will	  find	  the	  Policy	  Manual	  (rev.	  01/06/14)	  and	  
the	  Bylaws	  (rev.	  03/18/2014).	  

	  
3. Provide	  inadequate	  information	  and	  notice	  to	  members	  concerning	  Board	  actions,	  meetings,	  

activities	  and	  events.	  

Interpretation:	  

Co-‐op	  members	  should	  have	  easy	  access,	  through	  multiple	  sources,	  to	  information	  about	  their	  elected	  
board.	  
	  
Operational	  Definitions:	  

• Names	  and	  contact	  information	  of	  all	  current	  directors	  will	  be	  posted	  on	  a	  Co-‐op	  Information	  
board	  as	  well	  as	  on	  the	  board	  web	  page.	  

• Notice	  of	  all	  board	  meetings	  will	  be	  posted	  on	  the	  Co-‐op	  Information	  board,	  on	  the	  board	  web	  
page,	  in	  the	  weekly	  Eblast	  and	  in	  the	  monthly	  electronic	  newsletter.	  	  

• Notice	  of	  the	  annual	  member	  meeting	  will	  be	  posted,	  in	  the	  weekly	  Eblast,	  on	  the	  Co-‐op	  
Information	  board,	  on	  the	  board	  web	  page,	  and	  in	  the	  monthly	  electronic	  newsletter.	  

• A	  copy	  of	  the	  Policy	  Manual	  will	  be	  kept	  in	  a	  “Governance	  Binder”	  in	  the	  Membership	  Services	  
area	  and	  on	  the	  web	  page.	  

• Copies	  of	  approved	  board	  meeting	  minutes	  will	  be	  kept	  in	  the	  Governance	  Binder	  and	  on	  the	  
board	  web	  page.	  

• The	  agenda	  for	  the	  upcoming	  board	  meeting	  will	  be	  posted	  on	  the	  board	  web	  page	  and	  in	  the	  
Governance	  Binder	  the	  same	  day	  the	  board	  packets	  are	  distributed	  to	  directors.	  

• Notice	  of	  board	  elections	  will	  be	  posted	  on	  the	  Co-‐op	  Information	  board,	  on	  the	  board	  web	  page	  
and	  in	  the	  newsletter	  beginning	  1	  month	  before	  the	  election.	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  



4	  |	  P a g e 	  
	  

Data:	  

• Most	  recent	  updates:	  

	   Web	  Page	   Weekly	  
EBlast	  	  

*Co-‐op	  Info	  
Board	  

Newsletter	   Governance	  
Binder	  

Director	  names	  
and	  contact	  info	  

03/09/15	   NA	   NA	   Monthly	   NA	  

Board	  Meeting	  
Notice	  

perennial	  	   perennial	   NA	   perennial	   NA	  

Annual	  Meeting	  
Notice	  

02/17/15	   03/15/15	   NA	   04/01/15	   NA	  

Policy	  Manual	   03/01/15	   NA	   NA	   NA	   03/09/15	  

Approved	  
Minutes	  

03/06/15	   NA	   NA	   NA	   03/09/15	  

Board	  Meeting	  
Agenda	  

NA	   NA	   NA	   NA	   03/09/15	  

Board	  Election	  
Notice	  

NA	   04/01/15	  -‐
05/05/15	  

NA	   04/01/15	   NA	  

*	  NOTE:	  All	  board	  related	  information	  for	  the	  Co-‐op	  Information	  Board	  will	  be	  posted	  once	  the	  Board	  
Administrator	  is	  in	  place.	  

	  

4. Allow	  insufficient	  archiving	  of	  board	  documents.	  

Interpretation:	  

The	  GM	  will	  ensure	  that	  there	  is	  a	  secure	  and	  safe	  location	  for	  storing	  and	  archiving	  all	  board	  
documents.	  

Data:	  

• There	  is	  a	  locked	  file	  cabinet	  at	  the	  Co-‐op	  in	  the	  administrative	  offices	  space	  to	  be	  used	  solely	  
for	  storing	  and	  archiving	  all	  board	  documents.	  	  

• Only	  the	  Board	  Administrator	  and	  Board	  President	  will	  have	  keys	  to	  this	  file	  cabinet.	  	  
• The	  board	  section	  of	  the	  Co-‐op	  website	  has	  a	  secure	  login	  and	  password	  in	  order	  to	  store	  all	  its	  

documents.	  
• The	  Board	  Administrator	  will	  have	  a	  personal	  login	  and	  password	  for	  computer	  space	  where	  he	  

or	  she	  can	  maintain	  backups	  of	  and	  archive	  all	  board	  related	  documents,	  files	  and	  
correspondence.	  

	  



Three	  Questions	  

What	  challenges	  and	  surprises	  have	  come	  up	  for	  you	  in	  your	  new	  position?	  

Our	  biggest	  surprise	  was	  being	  in	  these	  new	  positions.	  	  We’ve	  grown	  and	  developed	  in	  these	  positions	  by	  having	  
numerous	  challenges.	  	  The	  challenges	  that	  we	  will	  focus	  on	  are	  the	  Monitoring	  Reports	  and	  Staff	  Morale.	  	  We	  have	  
found	  Monitoring	  Reports	  to	  be	  learning	  tools	  which	  help	  to	  clarify	  our	  roles	  and	  responsibilities.	  	  The	  challenge	  has	  
been	  the	  development	  of	  standard	  operating	  procedures,	  data	  streams	  and	  databases	  to	  support	  the	  reporting	  
statements.	  	  	  

Staff	  Morale	  was	  down	  as	  we	  stepped	  into	  our	  roles.	  	  The	  first	  few	  months	  were	  particularly	  difficult	  since	  there	  were	  so	  
many	  unknowns.	  

How	  are	  you	  dealing	  with	  them?	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Re:	  Monitoring	  Reports	  

We	  are	  using	  the	  CBLD	  Library	  for	  models	  as	  we	  develop	  our	  Monitoring	  Reports.	  	  We	  are	  using	  consultants	  within	  and	  
outside	  of	  our	  co-‐op.	  	  We	  have	  contacted	  folks	  like	  Jeannie	  Wells	  and	  Mel	  Braverman	  of	  CDS	  for	  particular	  questions.	  	  
We	  have	  used	  the	  expertise	  of	  Ed	  DeMuzzio	  for	  help	  with	  financial	  reporting.	  	  We	  have	  also	  visited	  the	  Willimantic	  Food	  
Co-‐op	  to	  discuss	  reporting,	  etc.	  

Of	  most	  importance	  was	  the	  development	  of	  an	  evergreen	  strategic	  plan.	  	  This	  flexible	  plan	  will	  help	  develop	  the	  data	  
streams	  and	  standard	  operating	  procedures	  we	  will	  need	  to	  support	  our	  Monitoring	  Reports.	  	  This	  is	  the	  first	  year	  that	  
an	  attempt	  at	  a	  strategic	  plan	  was	  made	  so	  we	  expect	  it	  to	  go	  through	  many	  revisions	  as	  we	  refine	  it	  for	  timing,	  
practicality	  and	  doability.	  

Re:	  Staff	  Morale	  

We	  took	  deliberate	  steps	  to	  empower	  staff	  and	  increase	  their	  participation	  in	  the	  overall	  work	  of	  Fiddleheads	  with	  the	  
expectation	  of	  accountability	  for	  those	  empowering	  responsibilities.	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  

Some	  of	  the	  steps	  were:	  	  
• Staff	  Meetings	  planned	  with	  any	  staff	  member	  who	  chose	  to	  participate	  
• Department	  Strategic	  Plans	  that	  fit	  with	  the	  overall	  Strategic	  Plan	  
• Advertisement	  support	  especially	  in	  the	  development	  of	  radio	  ads	  and	  sales	  flyers	  
• Staff	  Updates	  
• Grievance	  Procedures	  set	  in	  place	  
• Sexual	  Harassment	  Workshops	  

	  
How’s	  it	  going	  with	  building	  all	  your	  new	  relationships	  on	  behalf	  of	  the	  co-‐op?	  

This	  is	  going	  very	  well.	  	  Kristin	  and	  Sheila	  have	  worked	  at	  the	  Co-‐op	  as	  Working	  Owners	  or	  Employees	  for	  many	  years.	  	  
This	  has	  given	  us	  an	  advantage.	  	  We	  are	  greeted	  by	  name	  in	  the	  store	  and	  are	  networked	  in	  the	  community.	  	  We	  have	  
initiated	  new	  contacts	  with	  regional	  and	  national	  co-‐ops	  and	  cooperative	  organizations.	  	  This	  is	  always	  gratifying	  since	  
information	  sharing	  is	  graciously	  given.	  	  We	  have	  had	  conversations	  with	  folks	  at	  NCG	  and	  NCG-‐DC.	  	  We	  have	  an	  ongoing	  
relationship	  with	  Erbin	  Crowell	  and	  Bonnie	  Hudspeth	  of	  NFCA.	  	  	  	  Kristin	  will	  be	  meeting	  with	  GMs	  from	  Greenfield	  Co-‐op	  
and	  Putney	  Coop	  on	  March	  10.	  	  	  We	  have	  recently	  visited	  South	  County	  Food	  Co-‐op	  (formerly	  Alternative	  Food	  Co-‐op).	  	  
They	  welcomed	  all	  6	  of	  us!	  	  Although	  smaller	  in	  size	  and	  income,	  we	  all	  came	  away	  with	  new	  learnings.	  	  Kristin	  has	  
become	  our	  liaison	  with	  New	  London	  County	  Food	  Hub	  and	  has	  been	  asked	  to	  be	  on	  their	  Steering	  Committee.	  	  We	  will	  
continue	  to	  develop	  new	  relationships	  this	  year	  by	  attending	  events	  sponsored	  by	  the	  Southeastern	  Connecticut	  
Chamber	  of	  Commerce,	  Local	  First,	  community	  organizations,	  educational	  institutions	  and	  grocery	  sector	  organizations.	  



Proposal	  for	  Member-‐Owner	  Communication	  Task	  Force	  

Carolyn	  Wilson	  

Goal:	  To	  increase	  board	  visibility	  among	  member-‐owners	  and	  create	  
opportunities	  for	  interaction	  and	  communication.	  Will	  work	  closely	  with	  co-‐
managers	  and	  outreach	  team.	  

Objectives:	  Publicize	  our	  ends	  policies,	  create	  a	  video	  that	  tells	  our	  story,	  educate	  
member-‐owners	  on	  the	  cooperative	  principles,	  the	  4	  pillars,	  and	  highlight	  the	  
benefits	  of	  shopping	  at	  Fiddleheads	  vs.	  another	  grocery	  store.	  

Possible	  ideas:	  

• Create	  opportunities	  for	  interaction/communication:	  tabling	  during	  indoor	  
market,	  newsletter,	  e-‐blast,	  member-‐owner	  party,	  membership	  drive,	  table	  
at	  annual	  meeting,	  promote	  food	  access	  and	  wooden	  nickel	  with	  press	  
release!	  

• Video:	  contract	  with	  a	  member-‐owner,	  staff	  or	  local	  college	  students	  with	  
skills	  in	  exchange	  for	  a	  discount	  and	  a	  gift	  card.	  If	  this	  happens	  in	  time	  we	  
could	  launch	  it	  at	  annual	  meeting.	  Member	  testimonials.	  	  

• Ends:	  promotional	  items,	  postcard	  mailing,	  commercial,	  sponsored	  
Facebook	  postings	  

• Principals/4	  pillars:	  packets:	  CBLD	  video	  viewing	  party,	  handouts,	  brochure	  
• Why	  shop	  co-‐op?	  Why	  Fiddleheads	  and	  not	  another	  natural	  foods	  market?	  

Why	  not	  target?	  T	  Shirts,	  bumper	  sticker,	  commercial,	  mural/board	  with	  
fiddleheads	  shaped	  paper,	  like	  they	  do	  in	  grocery	  stores	  for	  certain	  diseases	  
(write	  your	  reasons	  for	  shopping	  at	  fiddleheads—get	  wooden	  nickel).	  

	  



 

3/2/15 12:11 PM 

Governance Investment 
The$Board$Budget$for$2015$
A$Process$Proposal$8$2Mar15$

Critical Decisions 
1. What do we want to accomplish? Proposed by Governance Committee 

a. What did we learn from last year? 
b. What do we want to accomplish that costs money 

2. What funds are required for these goals? Proposed by Treasurer 
a. How much do those things cost? 
b. What is our total cap? How does that compare? 

3. When will we approve our budget? Proposed by Treasurer 
a. Use the standard CoCoFiSt chart of accounts 

4. Who will create the budget? Treasurer with Governance Committee 

5. How will we evaluate our budget performance?  
a. Compare goals vs. outcomes 
b. Use CoCoFiSt data when possible 
c. Was it worth it? 

Calendar 
August 

Review the Governance Investment Policy C8 (change from February) 

September 
Treasurer proposed the next year’s board budget 
Board Budget approved and submitted to GM 

October 
Review forecasted actual vs. budget performance 
Approve goals proposal from Governance Committee 

November 
Approve overall coop budget which includes a Governance Section 

 

February 
Board received and reviews board budget performance for past year. 



Governance Investment
The Board Budget for 2015

2015 Change 2014 Act 2014 Bud Variance Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
Professional/Administration
Compensation $0 $0 $0
Professional Fees $0 $0 $0
D&O Insurance $0  ($1,483) $1,483 $1,483
Administrative Support $3,000 $2,965 $35 $1,200  ($1,165) $750 $750 $750 $750

$3,000 $3,000 $0 $750 $750 $750 $750

Board Development $0 $0
Retreat $0 $0 $0
CCMA (2) $1,700 $0 $1,700 $1,700 $0 $1,700
Other Conferences/Training $450 $100 $350 $300 $50 $300 $0 $150
Conference Travel/Hotels $5,200 $842 $4,358 $5,000  ($642) $1,200 $2,500 $1,500

$0 $0 Coop Café CCMA Retreat

CBLD $6,652 $202 $6,450 $6,450 $0 $1,663 $1,663 $1,663 $1,663
Resources $0 $0 $0

$14,002 $14,002 $0 $3,163 $5,863 $3,313 $1,663

Member-Owner $0 $0
Annual Meeting $0 $0 $0
Annual Report $0 $0 $0

$0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0

Extraordinary $0 $0
Legal Expenses $5,000 $5,000 $5,000  ($5,000) $3,000 $2,000
Coop Consulting $1,560  ($2,229) $3,789 $1,560 $2,229 $390 $390 $390 $390

$6,560 $3,390 $2,390 $390 $390
Total Board Budget $23,562  ($3,045) $18,165 $21,210  ($7,303) $7,303 $9,003 $4,453 $2,803

% sales 0.64%
Coop Sales $3,680,000



	  
Project	  Plan	  for	  Fiddleheads	  Co-‐Manager	  Eval	  and	  Coaching	  
	  

Stage	   Objective	   Co-‐Manager	  
Role	  

Board	  
Role	  

Deadline	  

1. 	   Implement	  evaluation	  of	  the	  business:	  	  
financial	  and	  organizational	  systems	  	  

Support	   Lead	   	  

2. 	   Move	  ahead	  with	  obtaining	  a	  
coach/consultant	  

Lead	   Support	   March	  20,	  
2015	  

3. 	   Review	  budget	  to	  find	  funding	  for	  
coach/consultant	  

Lead	   	   March	  20,	  
2015	  

4. 	   Obtain	  evaluation	  findings	  =	  What	  are	  
strengths?	  
What	  are	  areas	  for	  development?	  
Prepare	  a	  Board	  presentation	  of	  
findings.	  

Lead	  	   	   	  

5. 	   Report	  evaluation	  findings	  to	  Board	   Lead	   	   April	  
Board	  
Meeting	  

6. 	   Reach	  agreement	  with	  Board	  on	  areas	  
for	  development	  =	  goals	  for	  
coaching/consulting	  

Support	   Lead	   April	  
Board	  
Meeting	  

7. 	   Proceed	  with	  coaching/consulting.	  
Work	  the	  Plan	  to	  close	  gaps	  and	  
develop	  a	  strategic	  long-‐term	  plan.	  
	  

Lead	   Support	   April	  
Board	  
Meeting	  

8. 	   6-‐month	  (was	  June)	  evaluation	  of	  Co-‐
Managers	  
What	  are	  the	  areas	  of	  
growth/development?	  	  Impact?	  
What	  are	  remaining	  areas	  of	  
development?	  Impact?	  
	  	  

Support	   Board	  
with	  Co-‐
Managers	  

July	  
Board	  
Meeting	  

	  















1 
 

Policy Title: B1- Financial Condition and Activities 
 
Monitoring Report:  Fourth Quarter 2014 
 
With respect to the actual, ongoing financial conditions and activities, the General 
Manager shall not cause or allow the development of fiscal jeopardy or material deviation 
of actual expenditures from Board priorities established in Ends policies.  
 
We interpret this to mean that our management of the co-op will be fiscally sound and that 
we will not create, condone, or allow any financial behavior that would result in financial 
conditions which would be significantly different from the 2014 budget, would lead to a loss 
of profitability, would be a fiscal practice which did not reflect GAAP principles, or that 
could potentially cause the loss of viability of the co-op.  
 
 
The GM will not:  
 B.1.1 Allow sales to decline or be stagnant.  
 
We interpret this to mean that the overall pattern of sales must be better than the previous 
year.  If sales do not show growth there will need to be an explanation that is tied to 
industry or overall economic conditions that are creating a negative impact much broader 
than just Fiddleheads Co-op. 
 
Gross Sales 2011 2012 2013 2014 
First Quarter $236,944.23 $418,023.50 $586,495.42 $793,447.29 
Second Quarter $263,553.01 $459,504.26 $669,220.98 $842,723.54 
Third Quarter $239,027.15 $458,239.75 $676,644.06  $811,606.99 
Fourth Quarter $313,921.35 $494,463.87 $720,837.87  $840,180.49 
         
Total $1,053,445.74 $1,830,231.38 $2,653,198.33  $3,287,958.31 
       
% Increase        
First Quarter  76.40% 40.30% 35.29% 
Second Quarter  74.30% 45.60% 25.94% 
Third Quarter  91.70% 47.70% 19.95% 
Fourth Quarter  57.50% 45.80%  16.56% 
        
Total  73.70% 44.97%  23.92% 
        
     



2 
 

 
 
 
The GM will not: 
 B.1.2. Allow operations to generate an inadequate net income. 
 
We interpret this to mean that the GM will see that the sales generate adequate net income 
to meet the financial obligations of the co-op.  
 
During the 4th Quarter of 2014 there was a 16.56% increase in sales over the 4th Quarter of 
2013. 
 
Gross Margin – A measure of income to dollars generated by each dollar of sales. 
Gross Margin = 1 – (Cost of Goods/Gross Sales) 
 
Labor as a per cent of Sales – A measure of the efficiency of labor dollars 
Labor as a per cent of Sales = Gross Labor/Gross Sales 
 
 

 

$0	  	  

$100,000	  	  

$200,000	  	  

$300,000	  	  

$400,000	  	  

$500,000	  	  

$600,000	  	  

$700,000	  	  

$800,000	  	  

$900,000	  	  

Q1	   Q2	   Q3	   Q4	  

2011	  

2012	  

2013	  

2014	  

0.00%	  

5.00%	  

10.00%	  

15.00%	  

20.00%	  

25.00%	  

30.00%	  

35.00%	  

40.00%	  

Inv.	  Adj.	  3rd	  Quarter	   Inv.	  Adj.	  4th	  Quarter	  

Margin	  %	  

Labor	  %	  



3 
 

Note: 
The Margin Per Cent for the 4th Quarter 2014 before inventory adjustment was 34.26%.  
Concerned about our Merchandise Inventory, we used the CDS (Cooperative Development 
Services) resources for Merchandise turnover information.  As a result we found there was 
too much inventory in our Merchandise Department.  For December we severely limited 
spending in that department.  This increased our cash flow.  Once the 4th Quarter margins 
were inventory adjusted the final Margin Per Cent was 31.01%. 
 
Margin Minus Labor (MML) – A measure of how much of every dollar spent in the store is 
left after paying for the product and the labor associated with the product.  MML = Gross 
Margin Per Cent – Labor as a per cent of Sales 
 

 

Margin 
% Labor % MML % 

Inv. Adj. 3rd 
Quarter 33.34% 22.37% 10.97% 
Inv. Adj. 4th 
Quarter 31.01% 19.84% 11.17% 

 
The Co-Managers are working toward a 16% MML in FY 2015. 
 
As of this date (February 6th, 2015) the 2014 Final Audit is not complete.  At this time 
Fiddleheads is showing a net loss of $460.17 on the 4th Quarter  P & L Statement.  We 
recognized some unbudgeted expenses (e.g. legal fees).  We took steps to address this 
including reducing inventory and labor hours. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
The December Gross Margin of $120,804 is the highest Gross Margin that Fiddleheads has 
achieved in any one month period.  This was due to the following factors: strict adherence 
to Buying Budget, decrease in inventory, Holidays. 
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive. 
 
The GM will not: 
 
 B.1.3. Allow liquidity (the ability to meet cash needs in a timely and efficient 
fashion) to be insufficient.  
 
Current Ratio is a measure of Liquidity.  It is defined as the ratio between Current Assets 
and Current Liabilities. 
Current Ratio = Current Assets 
                            Current Liabilities 
Our Current Ratio is 2.47:1.  The standard is 2:1.  A higher ratio is better. 
 



4 
 

The Co-Managers are in compliance with this standard. 

 
 
 
The GM will not: 
 B. 1. 4. Allow solvency (the relationship of debt to assets) to be insufficient. 
 
We interpret this to mean that the GM will monitor the relationship of assets and liabilities 
to make sure that the relationship is a positive one. 
 
Quick Ratio is a measure of Solvency.  It is defined as the ratio between Cash and 
Equivalents and Current Liability 
Quick Ratio = Cash and Equivalents   
                          Current Liabilities 
 
 Using the Quick Ratio, our ratio is .95:1,  CoCoFiSt has an average of 1.25:1.  While our 
Quick Ration is a positive ratio, we are working toward a goal of 1.25:1 
The Co-Managers are not in compliance with this standard. 
 
We have addressed this by reducing labor expenses.  We are also carefully monitoring our 
cost of goods.  We expect to see improvement in the Quick Ratio by the end of the 1st 
Quarter of 2015. 

 
 
The GM will not: 
 B.1. 5 Incur debt other than trade payables or other reasonable and customary 
liabilities incurred in the ordinary course of doing business.  
 

0	  
1	  
2	  
3	  

2014	  	  
Q3	  

2014	  	  
Q4	  

Current	  RaEo	  
	  

Goal	   Acutal	  

0	  

0.5	  

1	  

1.5	  

2014	  
Q3	  

2014	  
Q4	  

Quick	  RaEo	  

Goal	  (CoCoFiSt)	   Actual	  



5 
 

We interpret this to mean that we will stay within overall budget guidelines and that if 
adjustments need to be made that those changes will be communicated and explained to the 
Board of Directors.  In the course of doing regular business if equipment fails and needs to 
be replaced, the GM will do so in a prudent manner and keep the Board of Directors aware 
of such changes. It will also be the responsibility of the GM to make changes in any 
insurance, tax, or loan arrangements required with the replacement of equipment.  
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive.  
 
 
The GM will not: 
 B.1.6. Acquire, encumber or dispose of real estate. 
  
We interpret this to mean exactly what it says. We are not to take part in any real estate 
transactions in the name of the co-op.  
 
We have not purchased or disposed of any real estate in the name of the co-op.  
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The GM will not: 
 B.1.7. Allow tax payments or other government-ordered payments or filings to be 
overdue or inaccurately filed. 
 
We interpret this to mean that all tax obligations will be met on time.  
Fiddleheads made sales tax payments of  $9454.39  during  the  fourth  quarter  of  2014              
Sales  taxes  are  always  paid  the  day  before  they  are  due.  
A total of $36,469 in payroll taxes was paid during the fourth quarter of 2014.  Payroll taxes 
are paid automatically by our payroll services company, CSC Paymaster. 
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive. 
 
The GM will not: 
 B. 1. 8. Allow late payment of contracts payroll, loans or other financial obligations. 
We interpret this to mean that the GM will establish procedures which assure that payroll is 
prepared and distributed on time, that loan payments are made and that all other bills for 
operations, equipment, and product are paid in a timely manner. Our procedures are 
established and operating in such a way that our obligations are met on time.   
 
We have a total of 518 vendors in our data base and approximately 240 are active.  We 
process about 340 invoices per month or 4,080 annually.  Over the past year we have had an 



6 
 

estimated 14 payments that were reported as being late by the vendor.  Therefore, our on-
time payment rate is 99.65%.  
Our payroll is processed bi-weekly by CSC Paymaster.  All federal and state taxes are paid 
by them and charged to our payroll account.  We have never had any late payments 
reported. 
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive.  
 
The GM will not: 
 B. 1.9. Use restricted funds for any purpose other than that required by the 
restriction. 
We interpret this to mean that any restricted funds which are set aside or established for a 
particular purpose need to be spent only for that purpose. 
 
The only restricted funds we had were for the refrigeration projects. 
 
Fiddleheads used the refrigeration fund to pay for the refrigeration projects that included 
installation of a new produce cooler and a ‘Coolbot’ bulk cooler.  This account is now closed 
and there are no more restricted funds at this time. 
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive.  
 
 
 
The GM will not: 
 B.1.10 Allow financial record keeping systems to be inadequate or out of conformity 
with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
We interpret this to mean that financial records will be kept in a professional manner and 
use the GAAP to prepare our records.   
 
Our accounting process uses GAAP.  Our 2014 Annual Report will be GAAP compliant.   
 
According to the July 19, 2013 Audit, copy attached, there were 6 statements indicating 
GAAP Compliance.  The first statement indicated the only “exception to the presentation of 
the Financials was that depreciation was being recorded by the income tax basis”.  It is our 
understanding that the 2013 Financials, copy attached, were prepared on the Income Tax  
Basis and there would be another audit for 2014.  The 2014 audit will include 2 sets of 
financials, one GAAP compliant and the other on the Income Tax Basis.  The Tax Basis 
Financials will be used by the accountant to prepare bothe the Federal and State Tax 
Returns.  The audit will also be used for our application to NCG. 
 
The Co-Managers are in compliance with this directive.  
 
 















Board Process C8 - Governance Investment 

We will invest in the Board's governance capacity.Q1  
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

87.50% 
7 

12.50% 
1 

  
8 

  
4.13 

•  a little worried we don't have $$$ to keep doing so.

We will make sure that the Board skills, methods and supports are Q2 
sufficient to allow us to govern with excellence. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

12.50% 
1 

0.00% 
0 

75.00% 
6 

12.50% 
1 

  
8 

  
3.88 

 

We will incur governance costs prudently, though not at the Q3 
expense of endangering the development and maintenance of superior 
capability. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

12.50% 
1 

62.50% 
5 

25.00% 
2 

  
8 

  
4.13 

 

We will use training and retraining liberally to orient new directors Q4 
and candidates for membership, as well as to maintain and increase 
existing directors' skills and understanding. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

12.50% 
1 

62.50% 
5 

25.00% 
2 

  
8 

  
4.13 

 • I hope so!! 



We will arrange outside monitoring assistance as necessary so that Q5 
the Board can exercise confident control over organizational 
performance. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

57.14% 
4 

42.86% 
3 

  
7 

  
4.43 

 

We will use outreach mechanisms as needed to ensure our ability Q6 
to listen to owner viewpoints and values. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

28.57% 
2 

14.29% 
1 

42.86% 
3 

14.29% 
1 

  
7 

  
3.43 

•  An area for improvement

 We will use professional and administrative support as needed. Q7
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

42.86% 
3 

28.57% 
2 

28.57% 
2 

  
7 

  
3.86 

 • Administrative support has not been available 
 • working on admin piece 

We will develop the Board's annual budget in a timely way so as to Q8 
not interfere with the development of the Cooperative's annual budget. 
In no case will we complete this work later than September.   
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

57.14% 
4 

42.86% 
3 

  
7 

  
4.43 

 
 



Board-Management Relationship D1 - Unity of Control 
 

 Q1 Only officially passed motions of the Board are binding on the GM. 
  Answered: 8  

 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

25.00% 
2 

25.00% 
2 

50.00% 
4 

  
8 

  
4.25 

Comments(1)  is there any other kind of motion? What does this mean? What is this measuring?
 
 
Q2 Decisions or instructions of individual directors, officers, or committees are 
not binding on the GM except in rare instances when the Board has specifically 
authorized this power. 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

37.50% 
3 

62.50% 
5 

  
8 

  
4.63 

 
 
Q3 In the case of directors or committees requesting information or assistance 
without board authorization, the GM can refuse any requests that, in the GM's 
opinion, may disrupt operations or that require too much staff time or resources. 
 
 
Strongly 
Disagree 
– 

Disagree 
– 

Neutral 
– 

Agree 
– 

Strongly 
Agree 
– 

Total 
– 

Weighted 
Average 
– 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

0.00% 
0 

50.00% 
4 

50.00% 
4 

  
8 

  
4.50 

 
 



   

 

FIDDLEHEADS 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

April 21, 2015 
6:30-8:30 PM 

105 Huntington Street, New London 
Time Topic Resource Board Action/ 

Outcome 
Leader 

6:30 Meeting Preamble  
Each of us is a member of the coop community 
and has been elected to be leaders in serving 
our members. May we conduct this meeting by 
empowering each other, treating each other with 
kindness, and maintaining an atmosphere of 
mutual respect.  

Check-in 

  President 

6:30-
6:35 

Agenda Review  Make any 
needed 
adjustments 

President 

6:35-
6:40 

Member Comments    

6:40-
6:45 

Minutes (Board Packet) 
• March 17, 2015 

 Approve Minutes  

 
 
 

Board Discussion (Topics for only for discussion at this 
meeting; action to be taken at future meeting) 

• Board Monthly Workflow 
The purpose of the workflow is to ensure that 
board agenda and board packet are adequate 
for the board needs. 
What is working? What needs to be revised? 

• Board Chair Succession 
How are we planning for our next board 
president? 
 

 
 
Monthly 
Workflow 
approved 
June 2013 
 
Great Idea: 
Board 
President 
Succession 
Planning 
 

 
 

President 

 Committee/Task Force Reports 
Governance 

 
Annual Meeting 

  
 

 
Mona Harmon-
Bowman 
Carolyn Wilson/Lisa 
Cygan 

 Managers Update Report (Board Packet)  Q&A  
 Monitoring Report  

B1 Annual Financial Condition 
 Accept Report  

 Action Items 
•  

  
 

 
 



   

 

 Consent Calendar 
• Board Monitoring Report D2 GM 

Accountability 

   

 Discussion of Items removed from Consent Calendar    

 Closings 
• April 21 draft agenda (Board Packet) 
• Meeting Checklist 

o Everyone was present physically and 
attentively 

o No sidebar conversations 
o Maintain topic focus 
o Everyone had a voice and was heard 
o Be honest but not brutal 
o Don’t monopolize 
o Clarify the purpose of each agenda item 

to begin 
o Signal if you feel personally attacked, 

disrespected, or put down 
• Review Decisions, Tasks, Assignments 
• Adjourn Meeting 

  
Review 
Evaluate 
meeting 
process: what 
worked and 
what needs 
improvement 
 

 
President 
 
President 
 

 
BOARD PACKET:  

1)  


